

Keith Richard Principal www.nashua.edu/south

STUDENT HANDBOOK 2023-2024

NASHUA HIGH SCHOOL SOUTH MISSION STATEMENT

At **Na**shua **S**outh

We are **POSITIVE** we have the power to learn and grow

We are **RESPECTFUL** of ourselves, others & the school environment

We are **INQUISITIVE** and lifelong learners

We are **DETERMINED**to reach our fullest potential

We are **ENGAGED**

in our school community



This Agenda Belongs To:	This Agondo Rolonge To:
-------------------------	-------------------------

NASHUA HIGH SCHOOL SOUTH BELL SCHEDULE 2023-2024

REGULAR			EAR	LY REL	EASE	DELAYED OPENING			
Period	Start	End	Block	Start	End	Block	Start	End	
1	7:20	8:39	1	7:20	8:22	1	9:20	10:10	
2	8:44	10:04	2	8:27	9:29	2	10:15	11:05	
E Block	10:09	10:44	NO E BLOCK			NO	E BLO	CK	
3	10:49	12:39	3	9:34	10:36	3	11:10	1:05	
4	12:44	2:03	4	10:41	11:44	4	1:10	2:03	

LUNCHES									
	Regular Day	Early Release	Delayed Opening						
Lunch A	10:49 – 11:12	11:44 – 12:05	11:10-11:35						
Lunch B	11:17 – 11:41	GRAB	11:40-12:05						
Lunch C	11:46 – 12:10	AND	12:10-12:35						
Lunch D	12:15 – 12:39	GO	12:40-1:05						

No School Signal
Students may listen for the "no school" signal fire alarm call 5-5 rung at 6:00 A.M. or to local radio station WHOB 106.3 FM, WMUR TV9. WZID 95.7 or visit the district website, $\underline{www.nashua.edu}$ (message scrolls at top of webpage).

OPEN HOUSE/PARENT TEACHER CONFERENCES

<u>Open House</u>	Parent/Teacher Conferences
Semester 1: Monday, September 11. 2023	Thursday, October 12, 2023
Semester 2: Thursday, February 15, 2024	Wednesday, March 13, 2024

2023-2024 SCHOOL CALENDAR - NASHUA SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schools Open: AUGUST 29 Tentative Last Day: JUNE 12

AUGUS	ST				3 DAYS (3)				
M	Т	W	Th	F	Schools Open 8/29				
	22	23	24		22-23-24 New Teacher/Staff Orientation				
(28)	29	30	31		28-All staff report to their assignments				

SEPTEN	MBER		18 DAYS (21)		
М	T	W	Th	F	
				Х	4-Labor Day
ХХ	5	6	7	8	5-K & Preschool start
11	(12)	13	14	15	12-In Service (Primary)
18	19	20	21	22	
25	26	27	28	29	

	остова	ER				21 DAYS (42)
	М	T	w	Th	F	
	2	3	4	5	6	
	XX	10	11	12	13	9-Indigenous Peoples Day
ĺ	16	17	18	19	20	18-Early Release
1	23	24	25	26	27	
1	30	31				

	NOVEN	IBER				17 DAYS (59)
	М	Т	W	Th	F	
			1	2	3	
[6	(7)	8	9	ХХ	7-Election Day/In-Service
[13	14	15	16	17	10-Veterans Day Obs.
	20	21	XX	XX	XX	22-24-Thanksgiving Recess
П	27	28	29	30		

ECEME	BER		16 DAYS (75)		
М	Т	w	Th	F	
				1	
4	5	6	7	8	
11	12	13	14	15	13-Early Release
18	19	20	21	22	
XX	х	х	х	х	12/25-1/1 Holiday Recess

JANUA	RY				21 DAYS (96)
М	T	W	Th	F	
XX	2	3	4	5	
8	9	10	11	12	
ХХ	16	17	18	19	15-MLK Day
22	23	24	25	26	
29	30	31			96 Days: August- January

FEBRUAR	RY				16 DAYS (112)
М	Т	W	Th	F	
			1	2	
5	6	7	8	9	
12	13	14	15	16	
(19)	20	21	22	23	19-Presidents Day In-Service
х	х	х	х		2/26-3/1-Winter Break

MARCH					20 DAYS (132)
M	T	w	Th	F	
				х	2/26-3/1-Winter Break
4	5	6	7	8	
11	12	13	14	15	12-Early Release
18	19	20	21	22	
25	26	27	28	29	

APRIL					17 DAYS (149)
М	Т	W	Th	F	
1	2	3	4	5	
8	9	10	11	12	
15	16	17	18	19	17-Early Release
х	х	х	х	Х	22-26 Spring Recess
29	30				

MAY					22 DAYS (171)
M	T	w	Th	F	
		1	2	3	
6	7	8	9	10	
13	14	15	16	17	15-Early Release
20	21	22	23	24	
XX	28	29	30	31	27-Memorial Day

J	JNE					8 DAYS (179)
	М	T	W	Th	F	
[
[3	4	5	6	7	
	10	11	12	MU	MU	12-Tentative Last Day
ı						(Gr. K-11)
[MU	MU	MU	MU	MU	MU = Make-Up Days
	MU	MU	MU			83 Days: February - June

1	١ -	No	Schoo

Legend

- ol for Students; Teachers work: August 28; September 12; November 7; February 19
- X = No School for Students/Teachers; Offices open
- XX = Schools and Offices closed

- Nashua School District Schedule:
 179 Days for Students, except 175 days for Seniors
 - 176 Days for Kindergarten Students
 - 183 Days for Veteran Teachers
 - 186 Days for New Teachers

BOARD OF EDUCATION APPROVED: 3/13/23

Open Houses
Open Houses
NHS North September 13
NHS North February 13
NHS South September 11
NHS South February 15
Conferences
NHS North October 11
NHS North March 14
NHS South October 12
NHS South March 13

PRINCIPAL'S MESSAGE

Dear Students,

Welcome to a new and exciting year at Nashua High School South! I hope you are all rested from your summer break and ready to begin a new school year. To our seniors looking forward to graduation, our juniors and sophomores exploring new career and academic paths, and finally the newest members of the South community – our freshmen – I welcome you all back and look forward to the many adventures that this year will bring.

The culture at Nashua South is one where we will challenge you to be the best student you can be, and then support you throughout that process. You are surrounded by the most positive, knowledgeable, and innovative teaching staff. Open your minds to all that they will teach you, and be prepared to have them learn from you as well.

As we begin our year together, I challenge you to set new goals for yourselves. Think outside of the box! Explore a new academic field, join a club or a team, and become actively involved in your school and local community. Strive to be successful in whatever you endeavor.

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions, concerns, or ideas to make our school a successful learning community. My goal is to be, for you, a principal who actively listens to your thoughts and opinions. Together, we will continue to make Nashua High School South a state-of-the-art, high performing academic institution.

Best wishes for a productive school year!

Sincerely,

Mr. Keith Richard, Principal

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ACADEMICS	
Graduation Credit	
Alternatives to Health	
Physical Education Waiver	
Summer School	
Make Up Schedule	
Tutoring Program	
Class Expectations	
Final Assessment	
Incompletes	
Repeating Classes	
Academic Honor Code	
Honor Roll	
Course Levels	
Auditing	
Marking Scale	
GENERAL INFORMATION	
Web Based School Information System	
What Can I Access Through Aspen?	
Travel between Schools	
Bus pick-up	
Use of automobiles	,
Dismissal procedure	
Early release/Inclement weather	
Alvirne classes	
Residency Requirements	
Change of Address/Phone	
Directory Information	
Military Disclaimer	
Emergency Drills	
Off Limits Areas	
Building Access	
Dress Code	
Cell Phones	
Instruction Use of Recording Devices by Students with Disabilities	
Computer Use Policy	
Pledge of Allegiance	
Student Records	
Withdrawals	12
ATHLETICS	
Athletic Calendar	
Attendance Policy	
Non-School Competition	
Return to Learn Concussion Protocol	1
GUIDANCE SERVICES	
Appointments	
Schedule Changes	
Scholarships	2

STUDENT SERVICES
Publications
Cafeteria22
Lost and Found
Media Center
School Store
Nurse's Office
Immunizations
SECURITY
Student ID Cards24
Transportation
Parking
Parking Violations
Working Papers25
EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES
Extracurricular Eligibility
Clubs/Organizations
National Honor Society
ATTENDANCE POLICY
Student Attendance
Definition
Absences
Intervention
Reporting30
Consequences31
Attendance Intervention Protocol
Student Attendance Procedures
Procedures for Excused Absences and Late Arrivals
Procedures for Early Dismissal34
Class Expectations/Make-Up Academic Consequences35
Procedures for Absences35
Procedures for Dismissals
OVERVIEW: STUDENT BEHAVIOR STANDARDS
Student Behavior Standards
DISTRICT POLICIES
Brief Statement on Non-Discrimination53
Sexual Harassment
Pupil Safety and Violence Prevention53
Bullying53
Procedural Safeguards53
Prohibitions Regarding Use of Possession of Tobacco Products53

ACADEMICS

Minimum Graduation Credit Requirements

ALL GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS MUST HAVE BEEN COMPLETED TO RECEIVE A DIPLOMA AND PARTICIPATE IN THE GRADUATION CEREMONY.

The following credits are required in the subject areas listed:

GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS 2023-2024

SUBJECT	CREDIT REQUIRE-MENTS	SOME COURSES THAT MEET CREDIT REQUIREMENTS
Art Education (Art, Music, Drama)	.5 Credits	Drama-Art I Band – Crafts Chorale
Information & Communication Technology	.5 Credits	
English/Language Arts	4 Credits	English 1 (Freshmen) Freshman Writing (Freshmen) English 2 (Sophomores) English 3 or AP Language and Composition (Juniors) Seniors: English 4, AP Literature and Composition or one of the following electives: Challenges Facing Today's Teens Creative Writing • Mythology Drama • Public Speaking Expository Writing • Science Fiction Film Studies Sports Literature Journalism • Woman as Hero
Mathematics	3 Credits (including 1 Algebra) *	Algebra 1 Extensions Level – 2 credits Semester 1 – Elective Credit Semester 2 – Required Algebra Credit Algebra 2 Geometry Advanced Math Topics
Science	Class of 2027: 3 Credits of Science are required Class of 2024, 2025, and 2026: 2 Credits of Science are required: Biology and a Physical Science	Biology and a Physical Science course are required. Physical Science, ELL Physical Science, Chemistry, Physics or AP Physics meet the Physical Science requirement. Beginning with the Class of 2027, students must earn one additional Science Experience credit.
US History and Government	1 Credit	US History
World Studies	1 Credit	World Studies
Economics	.5 Credits	Economics
US Government, Civics	.5 Credits	- Civics
Physical Education	1 Credit	Sports Education (Freshmen) Fit for Life (Sophomores) Lifetime Activities
Health	.5 Credits	All students are required to take Health 1 (sophomores)
Electives	12.5 Credits 5.5 Credits	Academic Diploma (12.5) Core Diploma 5.5

For a complete description of courses, career pathways and graduation requirements see "Footsteps to the Future" which are available in any Guidance Office or online at http://schools.nashua.edu/highschool/pos

Alternatives to Topics in Health Education

The State of NH mandates that public high schools provide comprehensive health education. Parents concerned about content that may conflict with their religious beliefs and values may request in writing to the Principal that an alternative health-centered topic be offered. The Principal will meet with the parents to develop a mutually agreeable educational alternative.

Physical Education Waiver

The Physical Education requirement may be waived upon the Principal's receipt of a doctor's recommendation. Determination as to credit awarded for temporary waivers will be the decision of the Principal. Any student who is granted a waiver must continue to earn the required minimum credits to be eligible for graduation.

Summer School

The summer program is offered to students for remedial purposes. Interested students may take advantage of this opportunity by retaking a failed course or participating in competency recovery. A fee is charged for both programs. Contact the Guidance Department for more information.

Make-up/Extra Help

Every teacher remains after school a minimum of one afternoon per week to assist students who need extra help or who have missed work due to an excused absence. For short absences, unless prior arrangements have been made with the teacher, the student must make up the work within a week.

Monday	Tuesday	Wednesday	Thursday
Business Ed.	Art	ELL	Guidance
Computer Ed.	Social Studies	English	Music
FACS	World Language	Media Center	Science
Math		Health/Phys. Ed	Special Ed.
Tech Ed.			
CTE			

Tutoring/Mentoring Programs

Students needing extra help may access the following:

- National Honor Society (see Guidance Department)
- Special Education tutorials (see Case Manager)
- Extra Help After School Sessions (see teacher's Make-Up schedule)

Tutors

After ten (10) consecutive days of absences due to illness, verified by a physician in writing, tutoring services are available. Students should contact their guidance counselor.

The School District will provide for up to five (5) hours of tutoring per week for a period not to exceed 45 days, and for not more than one 45-day period per year.

Class Expectations

Teachers will provide all their students with a written explanation of how they will grade for the year and what they expect from their students. These will be given out during the first few days of the course. Students should make sure they obtain a copy and keep it in their notebook. Students should also make sure they understand what is expected of them in each of their classes.

Parents will receive copies of class grading policies at parent-teacher night or by request.

Final Assessment

The final days of each semester are devoted to activities designed to assess the skills and knowledge learned during that semester. These assessments may take the form of a presentation, final project, written exam or any other evaluating method. Grades earned for these activities will be factored into the semester average. All students (including seniors) are required to take final exams. Students are required to remain in their classes until the end of the block.

Incompletes

When students receive an incomplete mark, they shall have five weeks from the date marks close to make it up. Failure to do so will result in zero(s) for the work not done. Serious illness or extenuating circumstances will be considered by the administration for an appropriate extension of time.

Repeating Classes

There are many ways to be a successful student at Nashua South. At South, we strongly encourage each student to work hard every day to earn good grades in all your classes. However, if you fail a class during regular day school, there are many other ways in which you can earn credit.

If you fail a course and want to take it again in a different setting, here are some options that will be considered. It is important to remember that prior approval is needed for several of these options (this means you need to get written permission from your principal). You should always check with your guidance counselor as well to be sure that you are earning credit in an approved manner.

- Credit/Competency Recovery
- Adult Education/Night School
- Summer School
- Plato

- Extended Learning Opportunities
 - o Independent Study
 - Virtual Learning Academy Charter School (On-line High School)
 - o Community Service
 - Work Study
 - o Internships
 - o College/University

There are fees that are part of many of these programs. You are responsible for any and all fees. It is always important that you do your best to be successful in day school. These options exist to make sure that there are many ways for you to earn your diploma should you need to pursue other ways to find success.

Academic Honor Code

The Nashua South community – staff, faculty, and students – recognizes that honor and integrity are learned behaviors and active practices vital to a meaningful personal and professional life. Thus, members of the community commit themselves to act honestly, responsibly, and conscientiously in our time at the school.

Members of the community recognize their responsibility for what they say and write, as well as for the authenticity of their work. We will not misrepresent our work or ourselves, nor give or receive unauthorized aid. We will strive to present original ideas backed by credible and properly accredited sources. Learning in Nashua is based on achieving competence, and cheating robs students of their opportunity to become competent. Cheating, plagiarizing, faking data, and any other form of academic dishonesty violates community standards, as well as the standards of the wider world of learning and working, and will be firmly dealt with.

Academic dishonesty includes ...

- Taking someone else's assignment, or part of an assignment, and submitting it as your own
- Submitting work written by someone else or rephrasing the ideas of another without giving the author's name or source
- Cutting and pasting from the Internet, including using Google Translate
- Submitting as your own papers from the Internet written by someone else or created using AI
- Exchanging your work with others, whether you believe it will be copied or not
- Presenting the work of tutors, parents, siblings, or friends as your own
- Using summaries/commentaries (Spark Notes, Cliffs Notes, etc.) in place of reading the assigned materials
- Using any form of memory aid during tests or quizzes without the express permission of the teacher
- Giving or receiving answers during tests or quizzes. It is your responsibility to secure your papers so other students will not have the opportunity to copy from you.
- Taking credit for group work when you have not contributed an equal or appropriate share towards the final result
- Accessing a test or quiz for the purpose of determining the questions before the assessment is given

Note: Plagiarism and cheating can occur in all types of sources and media: text, computer code, illustrations, music, published and unpublished material, handouts, lectures, and other students' work.

Penalties for violating community academic standards may include...

- An "IP" or "NE" for a grade
- Failure of a competency
- A phone call home and/or parent-teacher conference
- · Dismissal from an honor society
- Sanctions from a team/coach

• Referral to Administration

To be successful when you are struggling:

- Always ask for help when you need it!
- Allow yourself plenty of time to work on an assignment. Don't put yourself
 in a situation where stress will lead to poor work and bad decision making.
- When you are taking notes on sources, always clearly label the notes with the author, source, and page number to assure clear citations when you're incorporating these notes.
- Read every assignment over as soon as you get it and if anything is confusing ask your teacher for clarification.
- Go to https://owl.english.purdue.edu/ or http://style.mla.org

"I will honor myself, my classmates, my teachers, and Nashua High School South by acting responsibly, honestly, and respectfully in both my words and deeds."

Honor Roll

To be eligible for the honor roll, students must be taking at least 3.0 credits in the semester. To receive recognition on the "B" honor roll, a student must receive grades no lower than a "B-" in all subjects. To be on the "A" honor roll, a student must receive grades no lower than "A-" in all subjects.

Extended Learning Opportunities are only assessed as a pass/fail. A failure in an Extended Learning opportunity will impact honor roll status.

Course Levels

Leveling is a means by which the difficulty of a course is determined and, according to this concept, most courses are designated by one of the following: Foundation, Extension, Honors, and Advanced Placement. For a description of course levels please refer to "Footsteps to the Future", available in the Guidance Office or online under "Course of Studies."

Auditing a Course

Under very special circumstances, on a space available basis and with the recommendation of the student's guidance counselor, an auditing request may be submitted to the Director of Guidance at the time of scheduling. Contact the Guidance Department for further information.

Marking Scale

	Type of		f			
Score		ore	-		Descriptors	
Letter Code	Assignment	Competency	e.	Levels of Proficiency		
Couc	Assign	Сотр	Course			
A +					The student exceeds course	
A				Proficient with	competencies. The student consistently	
	1	1	1	Distinction	demonstrates, communicates, applies, extends, and/or transfers	
A-				Distinction	understanding of the course content	
					and skills.	
B+					The student meets the course	
В	,	,	1	Proficient	competencies. The student consistently	
B-	'	•	•	Proncient	demonstrates, communicates, and applies an understanding of the course	
р-					content and skills.	
C+					The student meets the course	
С					competencies. The student, with or	
~	1	/	1	Partially Proficient	without support, demonstrates and	
C-					communicates a basic understanding of the course content and skills.	
					The student is making progress toward	
					meeting course competencies. Student	
IP	1	1		In Progress	needs to demonstrate and/or	
	ľ				communicate a sufficient	
					understanding of course content and skills.	
					The student has not submitted	
NE	1	1		No Evidence	evidence to demonstrate an acceptable	
					level of competencies.	
NYA		✓ Not Yet Asses		Not Yet Assessed	This competency will be assessed at a	
		<u> </u>			later date. The student has scored a C- or above	
					in all course competencies but	
D			/		achieved an IP or NE in a weighted	
					Formative Assessment category.	
					The student has scored a C- or above	
					in at least 50% of the course	
NC			1	No Credit	competencies and is eligible to initiate	
					a post-course recovery. Student will receive course credit upon successful	
1					completion of the recovery plan.	
					A student has not achieved a C- or	
F				No Credit Awarded	better in more than 50% of the course	
			1	Not eligible for Post-	competency. The student is not	
				Course Recovery	eligible for post-course recovery and does not receive credit for this course.	
			1		does not receive credit for this course.	

GENERAL INFORMATION

Web-Based School Information System

The system manages all facets of student data from attendance to grades and schedules. We have implemented the Family Portal so parents, teachers, and administrators can work together and communicate more effectively and efficiently. More information on how to obtain user name and password will be forthcoming.

What information can I access through Aspen?

You, as a parent/guardian, can use one login to securely access the information for all of your children from just about anywhere. With Aspen, you can access:

Student Demographic information	Family contact and emergency information.			
Daily Attendance	Academic information (transcripts, grades)			
• Student schedules	Check if your student has any fees owed.			
GPA and graduation requirement	Sign up for email notifications			
• Class Pages: See information on your child's classes that the teacher may have posted.				

Travel between Schools and Students Attending Class at Alvirne

To make all programs available to students whose home school is either Nashua South or Nashua North it will be necessary to bus the students from one school to the other to attend classes not offered at their home school. This is being done to allow students to be at their 'home' school for the beginning and the end of their regular school day.

Bus Pick-up

Passing time between periods is not long enough to allow students to get from class in one building to class in the other building in the time allotted. It is crucial that students who are traveling get to the bus quickly to avoid any delays for their fellow students.

Students going to or coming from North will use the Security Entrance by the cafeteria to get on the bus heading to North or when returning from North. To speed the process when they return students should have their ID out to pass through security

If the bus is late in arriving to pick students up they should wait in the hall by the security office at either school. If the bus is late in dropping students off, the security office will send an e-mail to all staff noting the arrival time of the bus. Students must proceed directly to their class after passing through security.

If students miss the bus heading in either direction they should stay in the Main office or their Academy office. The academy office at the student's South school will be notified and if necessary disciplinary action may result.

Use of Personal Automobiles

Students who travel between high schools for classes **WILL NOT BE ALLOWED** to use their own cars. **NO EXCEPTIONS**. If you are caught driving, you will need to meet with the CTE Directors. You could risk being removed from the program.

Dismissals for Traveling Students

If a student needs to be dismissed from school they should drop a note off first thing in the morning at their own academy office. The office will verify the dismissal and issue a dismissal slip. If the dismissal time is when the student will be at North the student should pick up the dismissal slip in their academy office and take the slip North with them. When getting dismissed they must leave through the security office. If there is a need for an emergency dismissal parents should contact the South school. The North school will be notified and the student can be picked up at North.

Early Release - Delayed Opening - Bad Weather

The plan is that busses will run between the schools everyday regardless of schedules or inclement weather.

Alvirne Classes

No Student may drive to Alvirne. Student being transported to Alvirne must enter and exit through the security office. If a student is late for school, their parent may take them directly to Alvirne, otherwise they should report to the Career Center. If there are no classes or a delayed opening at Alvirne students should report to the Career Center. If a student has a last block class at Alvirne and Alvirne has an Early Release day when Nashua does not, a parent may call school to dismiss the student at the end of 3rd block.

Residency Requirements

Students attending Nashua Public Schools must be legal residents of the city. Legal residence can be verified by producing two current utility bills. If a student moves out of Nashua during the school year and wishes to continue attending school in Nashua, the School District must be notified by the student's parents and/or by the student if over the age of 18. If space is available, students will be allowed to remain in the Nashua School District at a prorated tuition. Families who move out of Nashua, but continue to send their children to Nashua Public Schools without notifying the School District, will be assessed the cost of tuition for the period of time in question and may face appropriate civil and criminal sanctions.

Change of Address or Phone

It is the responsibility of each student/parent to notify the appropriate Academy Office at NHS South of any change of address or phone number.

Directory Information

Public law allows the Nashua School District to disclose certain personally identifiable information from the education records of a student if the information has been designated as directory information.

The Nashua School District has defined directory information as: name, address, telephone number, date of birth, place of birth, major field of study, participation in officially recognized activities and sports, weight and height of members of athletic teams, dates of attendance, degrees, awards, most recent educational institution attended and other similar information.

The Nashua School District will continue to release such directory information at its discretion to external sources upon receipt of a request for such information unless a parent or student eighteen years of age requests such information be withheld.

Parents or students eighteen years of age may refuse designation of any or all of the aforementioned directory information for a specific student provided that a written

request to that effect is received by the Superintendent of Schools, 141 Ledge Street by September 15 of each school year. Complaints regarding alleged violations may be filed with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Office, Department of Health, Education, and Welfare. Public notice of this policy shall be given by publication in a newspaper on or before September 1 of each year. This policy also shall be published in student handbooks. Copies of this policy and additional information may be obtained from the Director of Human Resources, Nashua School District.

Military Disclaimer

Section 9528 of the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001 "Armed Forces Recruiter Access to Students and Student Recruiting Information", applies to both public and private institutions unless the private school maintains a verifiable religious objection to service in the Armed Forces. In accordance with 9528(a)(1), the military representative will be requesting the names, addresses and telephone listings of your Junior and Senior class students. If a student (18 years of age) or parent of a student requests their information not be released without prior written consent, their desires must be complied with and should not be included in the list.

- 34 C.F.R. § 300 et seq., Assistance to the States for the Education of Children with Disabilities
- Section 504 of The Rehabilitation Act of 1973
- Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) (20 U.S.C. § 1232g; 34 CFR Part 99)
- RSA 186-C, Special Education
- N.H. Code of Administrative Rules, Section Ed. 1100, Standards for the Education of Students with Disabilities Board Approved: 03/29/2013

Emergency Drills

Emergency drills are held at regular intervals to ensure safe, orderly and prompt exit from the building or lockdown within the building in case of emergency. Whenever the fire alarm rings and/or an evacuation announcement is made, students are to leave the building immediately with their teachers. Teachers will take attendance once clear of the building. Any student who fails to report to the designated area will face disciplinary action. During a lockdown, an announcement will be made to students/teachers to follow directions given.

Off Limit Areas

Students are required to report into the building upon arrival, making the following areas off-limits to students:

- 1. All parking areas, except when arriving at or leaving school.
- 2. Roadways
- Wooded Areas
- 4. Playing Fields
- 5. Any unauthorized area while classes are in session.
- 6. Mine Falls included.

After arrival, any student who leaves the building or school property without permission will be subject to strict disciplinary actions (including suspension). These areas are not off-limits when under the supervision of a teacher in a course, minicourse or other activity.

Building Access

Building entrances will be open from 6:45 a.m. to 7:20 a.m. Students who arrive prior to 6:45 a.m. may wait in the Security Office. Once classes begin at 7:20 a.m., students/parents/visitors must come in through the main entrance and sign in through our Security Office. Anyone who manually opens a locked door to allow students, visitors, etc. access to the building will be assessed a one day

Dress Code

GOAL OF A DRESS CODE:

To prepare students to be employable and considerate citizens by providing general guidelines for what would be considered by most as acceptable attire for a professional / educational environment.

No exposure of...

- cleavage
- midriffs
- undergarments
- torso

Minimal Specifics:

- Clothing should cover shoulders to mid-thigh
- Skirts, shorts, or pant holes must be below fingertips with arms by your side
- All shirts must have straps.

Nothing that promotes or suggests...

- occult/gang
- drugs/alcohol/tobacco
- violence
- sexually suggestive or offensive in content

Nothing that impedes safety and security such as...

- hats
- hoods
- chains
- spikes

Minimal Specifics:

- Headwear should never obstruct full view of the face (including forehead and sides).
- No bare feet.
- Various class expectations may also apply.

ENFORCEMENT:

These are only general guidelines to promote the primary goal and spirit of the dress code. The final decision on any questionable violation will be made at the discretion of the student's administrator. Students who do not comply will be subject up to a Class II consequence outlined in the Behavior Standards.

Cell Phones/Electronic Devices

Electronic devices may be used in the classroom <u>AT TEACHER DISCRETION</u> <u>ONLY.</u>

Cell phone use is allowed before/after school, during lunch and in between classes. All cell phones must be turned off and must not be visible <u>during</u> class unless approved by teacher. Violations will result in the confiscation of the cell phone, parent retrieval and further disciplinary actions will occur.

Taking pictures and videos with cell phones is prohibited and may result in disciplinary action.

Disclaimer: Please note that the Nashua School District is not responsible for the loss/damage of students' personal property whether in a locker or on a student's person. If students bring personal property to school, they do so at their own risk.

Instructional Use of Recording Devices by Students with Disabilities

The Nashua Board of Education supports the recording of educational instruction by students when it is dictated by their individualized educational program under the individuals with disabilities act or specified as an accommodation under section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.

Recordings of educational instruction made by a student shall only be used by that student for the purposes dictated by their individualized educational program or section 504 educational plans. Improper use of these recordings shall be a violation under the Student Behavior Standards.

Recordings may be accessed by Nashua School District administrators when they are necessary for student or employee safety, security of the school or investigation of a discipline violation.

Unless they are to be used as evidence in a student discipline matter, recordings of educational instruction will not be considered an "educational record" either for purposes related to the Family Education Right's Privacy Act or for other Nashua School Board Policies.

Recordings of educational instruction shall not be used in place of or as a substitute for teacher evaluations.

See also POPPS JIC - Student Behavior Standards

References:

• 20 U.S.C. § 1400 et seq., Individuals with Disabilities Education Act

Computer Use Policy

Any student who uses the Nashua School District's school computers must sign, along with a parent or guardian, a Responsible Use Guideline before an account will be issued. A student who violates the Responsible Use Guidelines may face disciplinary action which may include the suspension of computer privileges.

Pledge of Allegiance

All students, teachers and staff must stand in silence during the Pledge of Allegiance or National Anthem in respect for our country.

Student Records/Transcripts

Nashua High School will not release any information in a student's record without proper written authorization from the student, parent or guardian. All records and transcripts will be processed through the student's respective guidance office.

Withdrawals/Transfers/Re-entries

To withdraw or transfer from school, contact your academy office to schedule an exit interview. To re-enter, the student must first meet with the appropriate administrator

ATHLETICS

More information, including the entire Student-Athlete Parent handbook can be found at www.NashuaSouthAthletics.com

Sports offered and 2023-24 start dates

FALL	WINTER	SPRING
Registration opens	Registration opens	Registration opens
June 1, 2023	October 15, 2023	February 15, 2024
Preseason Meeting: Tuesday Aug 8 5:00pm	Preseason Meeting (North & South together): Monday Nov 13 6:00pm @ North	Preseason Meeting (North & South together): Monday March 11 6:00pm @ South
	ImPact Testing: TBD	ImPact Testing: TBD
AUGUST 11	NOVEMBER 13	MARCH 18
 Football 	Swimming/diving	Baseball
AUGUST 14	NOVEMBER 27	• Lacrosse
 Bass Fishing 	 Alpine Skiing 	Outdoor Track
 Cross Country 	Boys & Girls Basketball	Softball
• Fall Spirit	Gymnastics	• Tennis
• Field Hockey	• Ice Hockey	Tellins
• Golf	Indoor Track	MARCH 25
 Soccer 	Winter Spirit	 Unified Track
 Unified Soccer* 	Wrestling	
 Volleyball 	DECEMBER 4	
*if enough interest	 Unified Basketball 	

Registration/Eligibility Process

- 1. **Online registration** through FamilyID.com.
 - Registration for fall sports will begin June 1st.
 - Registration for winter sports will begin October 15th.
 - Registration for spring sports will begin February 15th.
- 2. Current physical on file in the Athletics Office
 - Only one physical is required for the entire high school career.
 - For any new student-athlete, the physical must be dated on or after July 1, 2022 (more than a year ago).
- 3. Academic eligibility *** NEW POLICY IN EFFECT AUGUST 1, 2023 ***
 - For fall sports June 2023 Q4/S2/FY grades are used for eligibility. A student must have no more than one non-passing grade to be declared eligible for fall sports.
 - All freshman are declared academically eligible for the fall season.
 - Please refer to Nashua School District policy JJJA and the Guide to Academic Eligibility for additional information.

4. ImPact Concussion testing.

- This is a computerized test that will provide a baseline measurement for all students involved in a contact sport.
- It is to be completed during freshman and junior years.
- Athletic User Fee. Can be paid during online registration process or in the athletic office.
 - Waivers are granted for students receiving free/reduced lunch.
 - Refunds will be issued if a student-athlete does not make a team.
 - A 50% refund will be issued if a student-athlete incurs a season-ending injury with more than half of the season remaining.

Athletic Attendance Policy

Daily School Attendance: A student's attendance record is final once daily attendance reports are published (based upon the NSD student database X2). It is the responsibility of the student-athlete to be sure to follow proper school procedures for absences and tardies at the beginning of each school day. The Athletic Office cannot override the official school attendance. There will be no changes <u>once the report has been sent to coaches</u> (exceptions to this will only be made if the absence was recorded in error). Absences

- All students are expected to be in attendance for the entire school day in order to participate in practice or event.
- If a student-athlete is dismissed by the School Nurse due to illness; he/she is
 ineligible to participate in athletics that day.
- If a practice or contest is scheduled on a weekend or over a school vacation, the student must be in attendance the preceding Friday (or last school day prior) in order to participate, regardless if the absence is excused or unexcused.
- A suspension (in-school or out) is considered an absence from school. Once notified of the suspension the student is ineligible for extracurricular activities until returning to a full day of school.
- Exceptions, such as school field trips, college visits, family emergencies, funerals, religious holidays, and scheduled appointments, must be cleared through the Athletic Office in <u>advance</u>.
- Unique or extenuating circumstances not listed above may be excused at the discretion of the Athletic Director or Athletic Coordinator.

Excused Tardies and Dismissals for appointments

- If a student has a legitimate appointment (for example: doctor, dentist, orthodontist), it is expected that the student attend school for as much of the day as possible.
- Even if the tardy or dismissal is excused, a student will not be eligible to participate in practice or an event on a given day if he/she is not in school for a minimum of 2 ½ class periods.

Unexcused Tardies

- Student-athletes will be allowed three unexcused tardies without athletic consequence (we understand that "life happens").
- On the 4th unexcused tardy: the student-athlete will not be permitted to
 practice or compete that day. The student is expected to attend practice or
 event but may not be in uniform or participate.
- On the 5th through 9th unexcused tardy: the student-athlete will not be
 permitted to practice or compete that day AND will not be permitted to
 participate in the next scheduled contest (if the 5th through 9th unexcused tardy
 occurs on a game day, the student sits that game and the next).

- On the 10th unexcused tardy the student will be excused from the team.
- The unexcused tardy count begins on the first day of the season and continues for the duration.

There are be consequences for not being in attendance for all athletic practices and competitions, including school vacations.

Non-school competition

It is an NHIAA policy that student-athletes are prevented from missing a high school practice or competition to compete or practice with an out-of-school team. Whenever a conflict arises between the high school team practice or competition and an out-of-school practice or competition, the high school team event must be honored by the student-athlete. Priority must be given at all times to the high school team, its practices, and its contests. There are strict penalties for violating this NHIAA policy.

Return to Learn Protocol

Purpose

Concussions are often referred to as an "invisible injury" because symptoms are not outwardly visible. The effects of a concussion on a student's cognitive ability may require educators to provide classroom and school accommodations for a student until he/she is fully recovered. The Return to Learn (RTL) Protocol is for all students who may require academic accommodations while recovering from a concussion.

What is a concussion?

A concussion is a type of brain injury resulting from an impact to the body causing the brain to strike the inside of the skull. A direct hit to the head is not required for a concussion to occur. Students suffering from concussions may experience symptoms for a few days, weeks, or in severe cases even months.

Concussion Symptoms

A concussion can affect a student in a variety of different ways: physically, cognitively, emotionally, and with sleep. Each student's symptoms are different in both occurrence and severity. Symptoms for a student should only be compared to how he/she felt, acted, slept, and performed prior to the concussion. One student's symptoms and recovery should never be compared to another student's.

Physical	Cognitive	Emotion	Sleep
Headache	Slow processing	Irritability	Trouble
Dizziness	Mental fog	Sadness	falling asleep
Balance difficulties	Trouble focusing	Nervousness	Trouble
Nausea/vomiting	Memory problems	Embarrassment	waking
Fatigue	Concentration	Anger	Sleeping
Sensitivity to light	problems	More or less	more than
Sensitivity to sound	Feeling confused	emotional than	usual
Change in vision	Shortened	normal	Sleeping less
Feeling sluggish	attention span	Anxiety	than usual
Speech problems	Difficulty	Paranoia	Drowsy
	planning		Altered sleep
	Difficulty		schedule
	organizing		
	Slower reading		
	Difficulty with		
	comprehension		
	Easily distracted		

Who can diagnose a concussion?

Only a licensed health care professional who has experience managing concussions, including Certified Athletic Trainers, can officially diagnose a student with a concussion.

How can a concussion affect school performance?

A student's best opportunity for a full recovery from a concussion depends on immediate implementation of cognitive and physical rest and then a gradual return of cognitive exertion. Because of the cognitive symptoms identified above, students may experience difficulty in the classroom. In addition to the symptoms listed above a student might

- Get tired easily in class and over the course of the day.
- Be bothered be bright lights or loud noises in the classroom, hall, or cafeteria
- Have trouble multi-tasking, such as listening to the teacher while attempting to take notes.
- Take longer to complete assignments.
- Need more repetition to learn new material.
- Remember something one moment but not later.
- Be easily overwhelmed attempting to keep up.
- Lose track of time.
- Get lost or have trouble finding their way around a previously familiar area.
- Get frustrated or irritated more easily.
- Have unusual mood swings.
- Feel unmotivated.
- Feel withdrawn and want to avoid social situations.

Concussion Management Team (CMT)

A team approach to support a concussed student is necessary in providing information, monitoring, and making adjustments. Members of the team should include, but not be limited to

- School Nurse CMT co-leader
- CMT co-leader (similar to a student's Special Education or 504 Case Manager) – this could be a school counselor or administrator
- Student
- Parents/Family
- Teachers
- School Counselor
- School Administrator
- Case Manager (Special Education, ELL, 504, Social Worker, etc. if applicable)
- Health Care Professional who diagnosed the concussion (PCP, ATC, etc.)
- Neuropsychologist (when and if necessary)

Return to School vs Return to Learn

It is recommended that a student be on complete physical and cognitive rest for 24-48 hours after a diagnosed concussion, thus not attending school. But as soon as a student feels well enough to attend, he/she should <u>return to school</u> with accommodations and a gradual increase in workload as symptoms allow. The

immersion into a normal routine with social interaction will help the student not feel isolated and aid in recovery. It is important to ease a student back to a full academic workload while the brain is still healing. Return to learn does not happen immediately and is not considered accomplished until a student has returned to a full academic load without accommodations (that were not needed prior to the concussion).

Guiding principles in the Return to Learn Protocol include the student attending school, working below symptom threshold, gradually increasing workload, and making adjustments at home as well as at school. The most important part of Return to Learn is that it be individualized.

Gradual Return to Learn Protocol (RTL)

To initiate the RTL Protocol the student must provide written documentation of the diagnosed concussion from a Health Care Professional to the school. Each student's journey through the RTL protocol is individualized. Each student's symptoms should only be compared to his/her own prior to the concussion and not to other students. Not all diagnosed concussions require academic accommodations. The RTL Protocol is an option for those students who need the gradual return to a full academic load.

		Workload		Progression Through Stages	
Stage	Expected Duration	How much work?	Adjustments	When to Move On	Decision Making Data
BLACK	1-2 days	Stay at home and rest		Student is able to independently wake up, get ready, and come to school without worsening symptoms.	Student's self-report Parent observations
RED: at school with no work	1-5 school days. Maximum 5 days	No work. Student sits in class and listens.	No in-class work. Participation and engagement allowed and encouraged.	Student can sit in class for one day without worsening symptoms.	Symptom Checklist Teacher – better or worse Parent – better or worse
ORANGE: At school with ½ work	2-5 school days	50% of classwork and homework. No tests or large assignments.	Academic adjustments for tests and assignments.	Student can complete ½ of their work for 2 full days without worsening symptoms.	Symptom Checklist Teacher – better or worse Parent – better or worse
YELLOW: At school with full work	2-5 school days	100% of classwork and homework Tests can be modified.	For in-class work and homework – NO adjustment. For test – adjustments okay.	Student can complete all work for 2 full days without worsening symptoms. Student and CMT leader must make a plan to complete make up work before student can move to the next step.	Symptom Checklist Teacher – better or worse Parent – better or worse
GREEN: Return to Learn		100% of classwork and homework. Make up important assignments.	None		

Please note: Progressing to the next stage is based on whether or not symptoms worsen. It is not based on symptoms being completely eliminated.

The progression through the protocol may not always be linear. A student may move forward and backward through the stages as necessary

Accommodation examples

Not all students experience the same symptoms, thus not all students require the same accommodations. This is a list of those commonly used:

Wearing sunglasses Shorter assignments and assessments

Wearing hats/visors Extended time

Passing between classes alone Excused from making up all assignments Quiet room provided to do work in Notes, PowerPoints, presentations provided

Audio or video record classes Alternate location for lunch Break assignments into smaller chunks Limit or eliminate screen time No due dates

Audiobooks or someone to read to student Alternate methods of assessment (verbal exam) Detailed step-by-step instructions and directions

Allow frequent breaks Avoid large-scale assemblies

Remove students from the building prior to a fire alarm drill Coordinated efforts among teachers to eliminate multiple Allow usage of headphones for soft music assessments in the same day

Use of word banks

Return to Play (RTP) and Return to Learn (RTL)

No student should return to full contact play before returning to a full academic load. Students may be at various stages of the two protocols simultaneously. In RTP students may be increasing activity as they progress through the protocol. Once the RTP protocol is complete, students return to full play without modifications. Likewise, in RTL, students should be in their classrooms gradually increasing their workload. Full Return to Learn is not reached until the student is back to a full academic load without modifications.

Formal Support Services

If a student has several concussions or symptoms and accommodations require lengthy implementation, a 504 plan or even an IEP may need to be developed for long-term educational success. This is only necessary in extreme cases.

Additional Documents to accompany the RTL Protocol

RTL Better or Worse - Teacher

RTL Better or Worse - CMT Leader

Concussion Awareness for Parents and School Staff pamphlet

Additional Resources Specific to Student-Athletes

NSD Policy JLCJ Concussions and Head Injuries for Student Athletes NH RSA 200:49 Head Injury Policies for Student Sports

RSA 200:50 Removal of Student-Athlete

http://www.nfhs.org/media/1018446/suggested_guidelines_management_concussi on_april_2017.pdf

Return to Learn Protocol Communication Guide

- Step 1: Written documentation from a Health Care Professional indicating a diagnosed concussion is provided to the school nurse. If the documentation is provided to someone else in the building (teacher, admin, counselor, coach, etc.), he/she should notify the school nurse immediately.
- Step 2: School Nurse, as the CMT co-leader, will notify the rest of the team, including student and parents, that the student is entering the RTL Protocol and when the student is expected to return to class. A copy of the RTL Protocol will be sent home to parents.
- Step 3: Every day while the student is in the RTL protocol:
 - The School Nurse or CMT co-leader will notify teachers and other members of the CMT, including student and parents, each morning of the student's current stage.
 - All teachers will complete the Better or Worse Checklist and return to the school nurse. Each school administration will determine the best means for this procedure within their building.
 - The CMT leader will also complete the Better or Worse Checklist and return to the school nurse (if other than school nurse).
 - Student will check in with the school nurse at the end of the school day and a symptom checklist will be completed.
- Step 4: School Nurse, or co-CMT leader, will gather evidence and make determination on next steps for the student.
- Step 5: Parents will communicate with the school nurse as needed on their observations of their child at home and out of school.
- Step 6: Once the student has progressed through the protocol and returned to a full academic load, the school nurse will communicate this information to all team members.

Protocol Drafted: December 2017

Committee Members: I Atwell, D Fitzpatrick, L Gingras, J Holland, T Keane, J Lopez, G McKinney, L McQuesten,

Resources Used to Develop this Protocol:

Return to Learn after a Concussion: A Guide for Teachers and School Professionals by the Children's Hospital of Chicago

Concussion Chalk Talk: Understanding the X's and O's of Concussion Management. A Guide for Students and parents; and School Faculty and Staff.

Center for Disease Control: Returning to School After a Concussion: A Fact Sheet for School Professionals

ImPacttest.com

http://www.bianh.org/youthcon.html

Personal interviews with students and parents who have suffered severe concussions

Somerville, MA Public School Concussion Documents

GUIDANCE SERVICES

The counseling staff at NHSS consists of guidance counselors and school psychologists. Each student is assigned a full-time guidance counselor who will contact students periodically for conferences. Students are always invited and encouraged to request an appointment with their counselor for assistance in both educational and personal issues.

How to Make Guidance Appointments

Appointments may be made through the guidance offices at school.

Student Schedule Changes

Adjustments to schedules will ONLY be allowed under the following circumstances:

- You have not met the prerequisite for a course that is on your schedule (for reasons of failure for example).
- 2. A physical disability that did not exist at the time of the selection and would now preclude you from participating in a particular class.

Changes will not be allowed for any other reason. No schedule changes will be made after the first 5 school days of the course.

Scholarships

An updated list of local, regional, and national scholarships available to eligible graduates is available through the Naviance Program.

STUDENT SERVICES

Publications

Nashua High School South proudly publishes the following:

- Senior Class Yearbook
- Nashua High School South Web Site http://www.nashua.edu/south
- Tattler a student literary magazine
- Nashua High School South Athletics www.NashuaSouthAthletics.com

Cafeteria

The cafeteria offers a breakfast selection. During lunch times, the cafeteria offers hot, cold, a la carte and salad bar selections. Students should inquire about the free/reduced cost food programs through the Cafeteria Director or their Guidance Counselor.

Lost and Found

Students who find lost articles are asked to take them to the Main Office. If you have lost an item please check with the Main Office.

Media Center

The Library Media Center works to ensure that students and staff are effective users of ideas and information; students are empowered to be critical thinkers, enthusiastic readers, skillful researchers, and ethical users of information. It provides access to print and digital resources that support academic and personal needs and interests. The library welcomes students throughout the school day (with a pass) and is also open during eblock, during lunches, and before and after school.

School Store

Students may access the school store during lunches.

Nurse's Office

Daily health care, health counseling and basic first aid services are available through the nursing staff. Parents/Guardians should keep the nursing staff informed of any special health conditions such as vision, speech, hearing, diabetes, epilepsy, recent surgery, medication, asthma, allergies, or any other medical problems. Parents/Guardians must notify the nurse's office of any communicable disease (i.e., MRSA, strep throat, conjunctivitis, Flu, etc.)

Students must obtain a nurse's pass from their classroom teacher before going to the nurse's office unless there is an emergency situation. The nurse will determine whether the illness is severe enough to call a parent/guardian.

Students who are required to take medication during the school day are required to request the assistance of the school nurse. The policy for medications is as follows.

Over The Counter Medications (OTC) - Parents must supply OTC medication in the original container to be kept in the nurse's office. The nurse's office will provide a Hold Harmless Agreement form which must be signed by a parent or guardian before medication can be administered. Students are not allowed to carry OTC medications in school.

<u>Prescription Medications</u> - Prescription medications require a written physician's order and parent/ guardian written authorization. In addition, the nurse's office will provide a Hold Harmless Agreement form which must be signed by a parent or guardian before medication can be administered. Parents/Guardians are required to bring all prescription medications to the nurse's office in the original pharmacy labeled contained. Students are not allowed to carry prescription medications in school

Abuse/misuse of any medications during school hours will be considered unsafe behavior and result in severe consequences.

The nurse cannot distribute any medication (aspirin, acetaminophen, ibuprofen, etc.) without prior authorization. (POPPS JLCD).

Immunization Records Filed with Nurses

New Hampshire School Immunization Requirements 2022/2023

	6 years and under : 4 or 5 doses with the last dose given on or after the 4 th birthday.	
Diphtheria, Tetanus, and Pertussis DTaP	7 years and older : 3, 4, or 5 doses with the last dose given on or after the 4 th birthday.	
DT/DTP Tdap/Td	Grades 7-12 : 1 dose of Tdap is required for entry into 7 th grade.	
Polio	Grades K-11 : 3 or 4 doses with the last dose given on or after the 4 th birthday and the last 2 doses separated by 6 months or more. Grade 12 : 3 doses, with the last dose given on or after the 4 th birthday.	
	OR 4 doses regardless of age at administration.	
Hepatitis B	Grades K-12: 3 doses at acceptable intervals.	
MMR	Grades K-12: 2 does required; the first dose must be on or after the 1 st birthday.	
Varicella	Grades K-12: 2 doses with the first dose administered on or after	
(Chicken	the 1st birthday OR laboratory confirmation of immunity. History	
Pox)	of natural immunity without lab confirmation of immunity is NOT acceptable.	

- Children must have proof of all required immunizations, documentation of immunity, or valid exemptions, in order to be admitted or enrolled in any school in New Hampshire. Documentation of immunity by confirming laboratory test is acceptable for Measles, Mumps, Rubella, Varicella, and Hepatitis B.
- A child may be "conditionally" enrolled when the parent or guardian provides:
 1) Documentation of at least one dose for each required vaccine; AND 2)
 The appointment date for the next dose of required vaccine.
- All immunizations must meet minimum age and interval requirements for each vaccine. A 4-day grace period is allowed; however, live attenuated vaccines (MMR, Varicella, or nasal influenza vaccine) that are not administered on the same day must be administered at least 28 days apart.
- Medical and religious exemptions have specific requirements. Information is available at:

Immunization Exemptions for Children | New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services (dhhs.nh.gov)

• The 2022 Immunization Schedule from the CDC's Advisory Committee on Immunization Practices can be found here: https://www.cdc.gov/vaccines/schedules/hcp/imz/child-adolescent.html

SECURITY

The safety and security of students and staff are of paramount concern to all. To that end, we have taken a number of steps to ensure that safety. At 7:20 a.m. all doors to the building will automatically lock. All visitors and any students arriving to school after that time will have to enter throughout the security office located in the south courtyard, adjacent to the cafeteria. Students will be required to show their ID when entering through the security office.

To ensure security, no student should open an outside door to allow any one, known to them or not, to enter the building. If a student does allow someone into the building, the student will be assessed a school suspension.

Surveillance cameras are located throughout the building as well as outside on school grounds. These cameras are monitored through the school day and record activity twenty four hours per day. These cameras are security cameras and are in place to provide security, not to violate anyone's right to privacy. If needed, the cameras will be used to detect/confirm violation of school rules.

Student I. D. Cards

All students must carry a current ID while on school property, including all school sponsored dances/events. Students will not be permitted to attend without their ID. Students are required to show their ID upon request and correctly identify themselves.

- 1. The first ID will be issued free of charge.
- 2. There will be a charge of \$5 to replace lost, stolen or damaged IDs.
- Days and times IDs may be purchased will be posted at the ID station and will be done on a limited basis.
- Failure to have IDs in possession and to identify themselves may result in strict disciplinary action.

Students are reminded that it is essential to have their ID on them at all times during the school day as IDs are required for access to school facilities and functions.

Transportation

School bus-eligible students may purchase bus tickets per semester. Bicycles should be locked and parked only in the racks.

Parking

Only eligible seniors will be issued parking IDs. If space is available a lottery will be held for eligible juniors and sophomores.

Parking ID holders will be given a copy of the school parking rules and regulations. If a student neglects to remain in good standing, her/his parking ID may be revoked.

Parking in private lots/nearby business lots is not allowed. Cars illegally parked on streets or other private property may be towed at owner's expense without warning.

Parking Violations

Any vehicle parked improperly, using the faculty parking lot, or missing a valid parking ID may be ticketed or towed at the owner's expense. No warning is necessary prior to being ticketed or towed.

Any student who uses his/her automobile to leave school grounds during the school day without permission from the administrative office may face disciplinary action.

Students who have their parking ID revoked for any reason will not be issued a refund.

Parking enforcement and requests for refunds are through the City of Nashua Parking Enforcement Department.

Working Papers

Working papers and workplace rules for students under 16 years of age attending Nashua High may be obtained from the main office.

EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES

Student Extracurricular Eligibility POPPS Policy JJJB

Introduction: The Board supports extracurricular activities that supplement and enrich academic instruction, provide opportunities for social development, encourage participation in clubs, athletics, performing groups and service to school and community.

Extracurricular activities include intramural and interscholastic athletics, performing groups, academic clubs and societies as well as student government. A complete list of extracurricular activities shall be maintained by the Superintendent and shall be included as part of the procedures for this policy as well as in the student handbooks at the high school and middle school levels.

Any middle school and high school student who meets the minimum standards of academic performance as stated in Policy JJJA and the behavior standards set by this policy is eligible for extracurricular activities. Individual extracurricular activities may require higher standards of academic performance and behavior in addition to any specific qualifications for the activity. A written copy of these additional requirements or rules shall be distributed to both the student participants and to the students' parents or guardians. None of these rules or requirements shall contradict or supersede Board policy.

These additional rules shall be approved by both the coach and advisor or supervisor of the activity and the school principal or designee. Violations of these rules may restrict or prohibit a student's participation, such as not being able to participate in a performance, practice or game. A written copy of these additional requirements or rules shall be distributed to both the student participants and to the student's parents or guardians. None of these rules or requirements shall contradict or supersede Board policy.

Behavioral Expectations: Students who participate in Nashua High School or Middle School extracurricular programs are expected to adhere to high standards of conduct. Any Class I, Class II, or Class III violation of the Student. The following behaviors are serious offenses that-barring an exemption-cause a student to be suspended from extracurricular activities:

 Illegal use or possession of alcoholic beverages, regardless of where such use or possession occurs;

- Illegal use, manufacture, possession, having under control, sale, purchase, prescription, administering, transportation, dispensation, or compounding of any
- controlled drug, controlled drug analog, or any preparation containing a controlled drug, as any of the above terms are defined in N. H. RSA 318-B:l, regardless of where such behavior occurs;
- A finding of guilt, delinquency, probable cause, or indictment for violation of a criminal statute in any jurisdiction.
- Student Hazing as defined in N.H. RSA 631:7(d), and in POPPS 3244.2, regardless of where such student hazing occurs;
- Illegal gambling, assaultive or threatening conduct, stealing, vandalism, and destruction of property, if any of these behaviors occurs while on school grounds, or otherwise while participating or attending a scholastic or interscholastic event;
- Gross misconduct, including but not limited to assault on an advisor, coach, judge, official, participant, opponent or spectator; inappropriate behavior and/or obscene language; cheating;
- directing threats or obscene gestures at an advisor, coach, judge, official
 participant, opponent or spectator-if any of these behaviors occur while
 participating in or attending a scholastic interscholastic event; and
- Class I violations as outlined in the Student Behavior Standards policy which is also found in the Student Handbook
- Any Class I or Class II violations as outlined in the Student Behavioral Standards policy which is also found in the student handbook and for which the student receives an out of school suspension of more than three days.

Consequences and Corrective Action

Any student suspended from school, in or out of school, will also be suspended from participating in and/or attending any school extracurricular activities or functions. At minimum the length of the extracurricular suspension is equal to the number of days of the school suspension. The suspension from extracurricular activities begins on the date of notice of suspension and concludes no earlier than the first day the student returns to his/her regular class schedule.

NOTE: If a student is on suspension during a try-out period of an extracurricular activity, it will be at the discretion of administration if the student may participate in a try-out period. This exception may only be made on a student's first violation.

First out-of-school suspension or accumulation of five (5) total days suspension in a school year: The student shall be suspended from all extracurricular programs for up to two calendar weeks (14 days). The building principal or his/her designee shall provide written notice of any such suspension to the student, and to the student's parent(s) or guardian(s).

Second out-of-school suspension or accumulation of ten (10) total day's suspension in a school year: The student shall be suspended from all extracurricular programs for not less than three calendar weeks (21 days). The building principal or his/her designee shall provide written notice of any such suspension to the student and the student's parent(s) or guardian(s).

Third out-of-school suspension or accumulation of fifteen (15) total day's suspension in a school year: The student shall be suspended from all extracurricular programs for the remainder of the school year. The building principal or his/her

designee shall provide written notice of any such suspension to the student and the student's parent(s) or guardian(s).

Appeal of Behavioral Violations: A student may appeal a suspension from extracurricular activities by submitting the appeal form provided in JJJB-R to the Director of Student Services. The Director of Student Services will respond within three business days of the notice of appeal.

The decision of the Director of Student Services may be further appealed to the Superintendent. The Superintendent will issue a final decision within seven (7) business days. Any violation which results in a suspension that exceeds five weeks (35 days) or is a third violation can be appealed to the Board of Education.

Definitions

- a. Possession is defined as the exercise of authority or control over something, and includes:
 - direct physical control; and/or
 - having both the power and the intention to exercise control over something.

Possession also includes joint possession, where two or more persons share possession as defined above.

- Participation in scholastic or interscholastic events includes practices, meetings
 participation in scrimmages, competitions, performances, votes and so on. It also
 includes travel to and from such events.
- c. Related Scholastic or Interscholastic Events -- an event is related to a scholastic or interscholastic activity if the event in question occurs as a direct result of the scholastic or interscholastic activity.
- d. Standard of Proof -- The imposition of consequences, as set forth in policy JJJ and these procedures, for violations of behavioral expectations that occur off school grounds or which are unrelated to scholastic or interscholastic events, including travel, must be based on an admission by the student of a violation to law enforcement personnel or School District officials or employees, or a court's finding of guilt, delinquency, probable cause, or an indictment obtained by or made available to School District officials or employees.
- e. School Year School year is defined as the first day of sanctioned school extracurricular activities, as set forth under the adopted Nashua School District calendar, through the last day of school of the academic year, or, if later, through the last sanctioned school extracurricular activity of the academic year in which the student in question participates (e.g., the NHIAA Decathlon, Heptathlon or similar sanctioned school extracurricular activity held after the last day of school).

Additional Requirements for the Accompanying Procedures

In addition to any previous requirements, the procedures accompanying this policy will:

- Provide a form for appeal of a violation.
- Provide a form for acknowledgement of extracurricular expectations.

Review

Procedures accompanying this policy will be reviewed by administration prior to the start of the school year and, if changed, an updated copy will be provided to the Board.

Board Approved: 08/31/2015 (Replaces POPPS #JJJ)

Clubs and Organizations

Please contact Nashua High School South's Student Activities Coordinator, Mrs. Nancy Cox at 966-1186 or coxn@nashua.edu with any questions or suggestions regarding student extracurricular activities. (Student activity fees for the 2020-2021 school year are currently being considered – more information may be forthcoming).

Student organizations enrich the curriculum of the school by providing a wide variety of activities for their members. There are numerous clubs and organizations available to all students at NHSS. It is also possible for students to request a new club or activity if enough students are interested, a faculty advisor is available, and if space and facilities can be provided. The principal must approve all prospective clubs and organizations. A list of NHSS clubs and organizations may be found at the school Web Site, WWW.NASHUA.EDU/NHS Students are encouraged to become involved. The Student Activities Coordinator is located in B1005.

"Listed extracurricular activity" shall mean:

Debate TeamHigh School YearbookSenior Class OfficerDrama ClubInterscholastic AthleticsSenior Class PlayFIRST TeamJunior Class OfficerSophomore Class OfficerFreshman Class OfficerPanther PrintsStudent Senate & A.C.T.

And other school-sanctioned clubs and activities

ALL STUDENTS MUST ATTEND ALL CLASSES IN ORDER TO PARTICIPATE IN ATHLETIC AND/OR EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES THAT DAY. TO ATTEND ANY SCHOOL NIGHT DANCES, STUDENTS MUST ATTEND SCHOOL FOR AT LEAST HALF OF THE DAY

National Honor Society

The purpose of the Nashua South chapter of the National Honor Society (NHS) is to create an enthusiasm for scholarship, to stimulate a desire to render service, to promote worthy leadership, and to encourage the development of character. Through a consideration process, Sophomores, Juniors, and Seniors will be selected for induction into the NHS. NHS members design and carry out Individual Service Projects, pay dues, attend meetings, and contribute to our school and community through activities and group projects. Members must remain in good standing to remain an NHS member.

ATTENDANCE POLICY

STUDENT ATTENDANCE

The Nashua Board of Education has a duty to provide elementary and secondary education for students in Nashua. Daily attendance by each student is vital for fulfilling this duty. It is the right of every student to receive a public education and it is the legal responsibility of parents to ensure that students attend on a daily basis.

When students are truant, the Board is committed to trying to assist parents with their duty to have students attend school. However, if the truancy persists after genuine efforts to assist parents, the Board may request court intervention to compel attendance.

The principal of each school is responsible for attendance and truancy issues at his/her school. Principals may designate an individual to assist them as the coordinator of attendance and truancy issues.

I. Definitions

These definitions apply to all attendance related policies:

<u>Tardy</u>. Any student who is not at school or in class on time and has not been excused is tardy.

- Half Day of Absence. "Half day of absence" means that a student received at least three hours of instructional time, but less than a full day of instructional time.
- 2. <u>Truancy</u>. "Truancy" means an unexcused absence or tardiness from school.
- 3. <u>Habitual Truancy</u>. "Habitual truancy" means ten half days or more of unexcused absences during a school year.
- <u>Unexcused Absence</u>. An "unexcused absence" is an absence which has not been excused.
- Excused Absence. An "excused absence" is an absence approved by a school principal.
- <u>Early Dismissal</u>. "Early Dismissal" is any dismissal before the end of the school day.

II. Absences

Excused Absences

Excused absences, late arrivals and early dismissals are sometimes necessary for the health and welfare of the student, or result from a significant family emergency or school-sponsored activity. When an excused absence originates from outside the school, it must be documented and, when possible, this documentation should be done in advance. Policy **JH-R** gives detailed information about the requirements and procedures to be followed.

The Board considers the following to be excused absences:

- a. Illness
- b. Recovery from an accident
- c. Required court attendance

- d. Medical and dental appointments
- e. Death in the immediate family
- f. Observation or celebration of a bona fide religious holiday
- g. Approved participation in a school co-curricular or extra-curricular activity h. Field trips
- h. Out-of-school suspensions
- i. College visits
- j. Such other good cause as may be acceptable to the Principal or permitted by law

Principals (or their designees) may consider requests from parents to approve excused absences for other extenuating circumstances.

Unexcused Absences

Note that the following are considered unexcused absences:

- Family vacations
- Work
- · Car or transportation problems, not including late bus arrival
- Non-medical appointments
- Providing child-care

At the discretion of the principal, class time missed due to habitual tardiness may be counted towards half days of unexcused absence.

If parents are dissatisfied with an unexcused absence decision, they may request a conference with the Principal to again explain the reasons for non-attendance. The Principal may then reconsider the initial determination. However, the Principal's decision shall be final.

Absence and Extracurricular Activities

In order to participate in extracurricular activities students must attend a full day of school on the day of the activity, or, if the activity occurs on a non-school day, the last school day preceding the activity. Exceptions for an excused absence may be granted by a school administrator.

III. Intervention

The Board directs the Superintendent, Truant Officer(s), Principals and staff to intervene and ensure daily school attendance according to the District attendance protocol policy **JHA**.

When necessary and after the steps of policy **JHA** have been followed, the Truant Officer(s) may pursue available legal remedies to resolve the truancy.

IV. Reporting

The Superintendent will provide a report to the Board in January and June of each year on District attendance. At a minimum this report will provide both a breakdown of excused absences and unexcused absences for each school. Each of these breakdowns will include the numbers of students who have: 0-4, 5-10, 11-15, 16-20, 21-25, 26-30, and 31 or more absences. The number of five (5) and ten (10) day letters that have been waived will also be reported.

V. Consequences

Any secondary student with twenty or more unexcused absences may be prohibited from any extracurricular activities and may lose all privileges for a period of one year from the date of the last offense.

The District reserves the right to pursue legal action with parents who fail to meet their legal responsibility to ensure their children attend school on a daily basis. *Legal References:*

RSA 193:1 Duty of Parent;
Compulsory Attendance by
Pupil RSA 193:7 Penalty
RSA 193:8 Notice Requirements
RSA 193:16 School Attendance
NH Code of Administrative Rules, Section Ed 306.04 (a) (1), Attendance and
Absenteeism
NH Code of Administrative Rules, Section Ed 306.04 (c), Policy Relative to
Attendance and Absenteeism
NH Code of Administrative Rules, Section Ed 306.18 (c) (6)
RSA 189:35-a Truancy Defined
RSA 189:1-a Duty to Provide Education

Legal References Disclaimer: These references are not intended to be considered part of this policy, nor should they be taken as a comprehensive statement of the legal basis for the Board to enact this policy, nor as a complete recitation of related legal authority. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the policy.

Board Approved: 03/14/2011 [Replaces POPPS 3209, 3209.1, and 3243]

11/14/2011 10/30/2017 05/23/2022

Nashua Board of Education Policy JHA ATTENDANCE INTERVENTION PROTOCOL

Each school within the Nashua School District shall follow the attendance intervention protocol. This common protocol will ensure that parents understand the obligation of RSA 193:1 to have their children attend school and the children themselves will be encouraged to attend each school day.

The Principal (or Principal's designee) in each school shall be designated as
the attendance coordinator and shall be responsible for implementation of the
student attendance protocol, coordination of attendance issues for the school,
and shall serve as the liaison with the District's attendance officer.

- Each Principal shall ensure that his/her school has an effective attendance team. Responsibilities of the attendance team may be added to an existing team—such as a Child Assistance Team (CHAT) team—or the Principal may appoint a new team. At a minimum each attendance team shall:
 - a. set goals, timeframes, and positive strategies for improving attendance;
 - b. evaluate attendance data and trends;
 - c. make resulting recommendations to the Principal for improving upon the school's attendance protocol (to the extent it exceeds district protocol requirements);
 - d. conduct case reviews for those students who are truant or are in danger of becoming truant. The case review shall include a review of any additional school or community services that may support the student in attending school, and a determination regarding the appropriateness of a referral for evaluation for Special Education services.
- Parents and students (as appropriate by age) enrolling in a new school within the District may be asked to sign an attendance contract. The parent will be provided with a copy of the signed contract.
- 4. When a student's level of absences prompts a concern, a teacher, Principal or other school staff member shall make reasonable attempts to contact the parent to discuss the concern and shall notify the attendance coordinator for the school.
- 5. When a student is absent five (5) or more days prior to January 31, a "five-day letter" shall be sent home. A copy of the State of New Hampshire compulsory attendance law shall be included with the letter. This letter may be waived if the attendance team or Principal is aware of health or other conditions which legitimately prevent the student from attending school.
- 6. Any time a student is absent ten (10) or more days during the school year, a "ten-day letter" shall be sent home. A copy of the State of New Hampshire compulsory attendance law shall be included with the letter. This letter may also be waived if the attendance team or Principal is aware of health or other conditions which legitimately prevent the student from attending school.
- 8. A student who has at least ten (10) unexcused half-days of absence is habitually truant and can be referred to the district attendance officer for further action. Prior to referring a student to the district attendance officer, the school shall make reasonable attempts to meet with the parent(s) to discuss their student's attendance and to develop a remediation plan which the parent(s) will be asked to sign.

- 9. At any time a student is absent fifteen (15) consecutive days unexcused, a "15-day letter" shall be sent home. A copy of the State of New Hampshire compulsory attendance law shall be included with the letter. This letter may also be waived if the attendance team or Principal is aware of health or other conditions which legitimately prevent the student from attending school.
- 10. If a remediation plan for a student cannot be developed—either because a parent is unwilling to meet or because an agreement cannot be reached—or if the remediation plan is not successful, a student will be referred to the district attendance officer for further action. A letter will be sent to the parent informing him or her of this action.
- 11. Within ten (10) days of the beginning of the school year, each school shall submit to the district attendance officer a list of students who are registered to attend but have not shown up to school after efforts have been made to contact the parent. This list shall include each student's name, address, date of birth, telephone number, and parents' names. The school will notify the attendance officer if any of these students begin attending school. The attendance officer will notify the school regarding the final disposition of his investigation into the status of each student on the list.

Board Approved: 03/14/2011 05/23/2022

Nashua Board of Education Policy JH-R STUDENT ATTENDANCE PROCEDURES

Procedures for Excused Absences and Late Arrivals

All excused absences originating from outside the school must be documented through written/phone communication from the parent, and verified as necessary by the school.

Parents should report an absence, including the reason for the absence, on the morning of or evening before the absence.

When the school has not been contacted prior to an absence, parents must provide a note including the student's name, grade, date(s) of absence, specific reason for the absence and the parent/guardian's name, phone number and signature.

Additionally:

- For an Illness. A doctor's note may be required for absences that
 exceed five (5) consecutive school days or ten (10) cumulative school
 days in a school year, or to document a long-term or chronic health
 condition.
- Religious holidays are restricted to those holidays regularly observed as part of the family's faith.

- Attending the funeral of a family member. If the funeral requires an absence of more than three days, the school should be notified in advance. A school administrator may excuse an absence for the funeral of another individual who has played a significant role in a student's life.
- Field trips. If the field trip leaves after the beginning of the school day
 or returns before the end of the school day, students are expected to
 attend all of the classes up until the scheduled departure and upon return.
 If the student does not attend those classes, he/she will be considered
 truant from them.
- Personal or family emergencies requiring student absences. These
 are approved at the discretion of the school administrator.
- College visitations. Must be approved in advance by a school administrator.
- Family obligations. Require prior approval from a school administrator.

Procedures for Early Dismissal

Parents requesting dismissal before the end of the school day must make a written/phone communication request. Parents of elementary and middle school students must come into the school office to get the student and sign him/her out. High school students must have signed permission by parents if under age 18 and all students must properly sign out before leaving. Signed permissions are subject to verification. Early dismissal should be requested only in an emergency or extenuating circumstance.

Legal References:

RSA 193:1 Duty of Parent; Compulsory Attendance by Pupil RSA 193:16 School Attendance RSA 189:35-a Truancy Defined Ed. 306.18 C 6

Legal References Disclaimer: These references are not intended to be considered part of this policy, nor should they be taken as a comprehensive statement of the legal basis for the Board to enact this policy, nor as a complete recitation of related legal authority. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the policy.

Board Approved: 03/14/2011 05/23/2022

Class Expectations/Make-Up - Academic Consequences

Attendance and class participation are key elements in every student's success. It is the student's responsibility to meet with the teacher to get assignments and reschedule tests.

- Any student who has an absence will be allowed to make up the class work, tests
 or quizzes within five (5) school days of the student's return to school when
 reasonable. Long-term assignments and projects will be due upon the student's
 return to school. Additional time may be granted for excused absences.
- For student absences, a note or telephone call must be received within 24 hours
 of such absence or this absence will be deemed unexcused.
- Students who miss quarter end or semester end assignments may submit missed assignments at the teacher's discretion.

Procedures – For Absences

- When a student is going to be absent, a parent/guardian <u>must</u> call to notify the school of the absence and the reason for it. These calls should be made before 7:30 a.m. on the day of the absence, giving:
 - ✓ the caller's name
 - ✓ the student's name and grade
 - ✓ the specific reason for the absence

Calls may be left via voice mail the evening before the absence. The call and reason for absence will be noted by the secretary as calls are retrieved from voice mail.

Calls to the parent/guardian, will be made when a student is absent and the parent/guardian has not called the school. The purpose of these calls will be to determine the reason for the absence. In addition:

- If a student is absent with no contact from home, a call will be made to the student's home via an automated system.
- Teachers are expected to call parents when absences impact academic achievement.

For Dismissals:

 A student who is to be dismissed must bring a note from home to his or her Academy office before school on the day of the dismissal. Also, the parent/guardian may call the Academy office for a dismissal. Requests are subject to verification. When the time arrives for dismissal, the student must sign out of the house office before leaving the building.

The team/academy may define incentives to encourage attendance. Incentives must be approved by the building principal, communicated to the parent/guardian in writing, and put in place at the beginning of the marking period. These incentives associated with privileges may include but are not limited to the following:

- Participation in extra-curricular activities.
 - Students must be present the entire day on the day of an activity in order to participate in extra-curricular activities.
- Participation in field trips, speaker presentations, etc.
- Opportunities to purchase or keep parking permits.

 Other incentives may include prizes and privileges to reward exemplary attendance. These may be unique to specific academies and teams.

OVERVIEW: STUDENT BEHAVIOR STANDARDS

The primary purpose of the public school is education. In order for students to learn and teachers to teach, an atmosphere conducive to learning must be maintained.

Good behavior and classroom discipline are necessary if learning is to take place. The purpose of the Nashua School District's Student Behavior Standards is to ensure that a safe and orderly environment is maintained for everyone. These rules are in effect for all Nashua School students at any school function, school sponsored event, school bus stop or bus ride.

As students grow and mature, they are expected to accept greater behavioral responsibilities. These standards are designed to guide students through the process of learning good discipline and to outline the consequences of disruptive behavior. There are situations which will warrant minor disciplinary responses at the elementary level (grades K-5), while the same situation will result in a more severe response at the middle (grades 6-8) and high school (grades 9-12) levels. Although the responses may differ, the Student Behavior Standards remain constant. *Students should be aware that, in addition to the violations listed, other infractions may be included as part of the individual school rules and regulations.* These rules and regulations will be communicated to parents and students annually, either in writing or through references to their location on the District's website.

In addition, anyone who is a student in the Nashua School District, who commits an act of vandalism involving school property outside of the normal school day, or during non-school days, shall be held accountable under this policy. Any perceived threatening act towards any employee of the Nashua School District after normal school hours and days, will fall under the Student Behavior Standards.

Goals

Discipline is a process...

- to maintain an orderly, safe and structured environment.
- through which individuals learn and demonstrate expected, appropriate behaviors.
- in which students accept responsibility for their own behaviors and respect the rights of others.

Expectations

The entire community has a vested interest in the discipline program within our schools. Successful implementation of a thoughtfully constructed discipline policy is a benefit to the entire community both for the present and for the future. Habits of self-discipline developed in the educational setting...

- will have a positive influence on building stronger family bonds;
- will enhance the opportunity for better relationships within the workplace and the community.

All staff and students have an important role to play in supporting the discipline program within our schools. This includes the responsibility for non-teaching staff to appropriately report student offenses to a teacher, supervisor or administrator. This also includes an expectation that each student will take responsibility to:

- be in charge of his/her own behavior
- · comply with school rules at all times
- · arrive at school and to class on time
- be prepared to learn
- honor the teacher's duty to teach and other students' right to learn

 attend school daily
- tell school staff about any discipline concerns he/she may have

Classes of Student Violations

Student violations are divided into three classes - Minor, Moderate, and Severe. They are described below.

Class III Offenses (Minor)

Class III Offenses will generally be addressed through in-class and/or in-school disciplinary actions, such as detentions and other strategies initiated by the teacher or administrator.

Teachers or principals may issue after school detentions. When an after-school detention is assigned to an elementary school student, the principal or designee will contact the parent/guardian to mutually agree upon the day and time of the detention, as well as the plan and method of returning the child home.

When an after-school detention is assigned to a middle or high school student, a 24-hour notice is required.

Class II Offenses (Moderate)

Class II Offenses will generally require more severe disciplinary actions consisting primarily of Extended Day Detentions (EDD), which are generally assigned by administrators and run for 90 minutes after school. For more serious Class II Offenses In-School Suspensions (ISS) or Out-of-School Suspensions (OSS) may be assigned. A student assigned an in-school suspension reports to an in-school suspension center at his or her school during normal school hours. A student assigned an out-of-school suspension remains under the supervision of a parent or guardian away from the school during the day(s) he or she is suspended.

Class I Offenses (Severe)

Class I Offenses are of an extremely serious nature and generally will warrant out-ofschool suspensions by principals and/or expulsion by the Board of Education.

All suspensions and expulsions will be handled as outlined on Pages 6-11 of this document.

Response Actions by Class Offense

By implementing uniform student behavior standards, the Nashua School District can provide a safe, educational environment that is consistently maintained throughout all schools and enforced by all teachers and administrators.

Listed below are the general responses to offenses by class. In individual instances, a principal may change the school's response to an offense to either a more serious class or a less serious class depending upon specific circumstances justifying a response which does not follow the normal prescriptive process.

CLASS III OFFENSES (Minor)

Class III Offenses usually occur in the classroom or other less structured settings under the teacher's supervision. Occasionally, the teacher will have to call on other people for assistance, but the responses at this level usually do not require the intervention of a building administrator. A response to a Class III offense will generally proceed as follows:

- A. The teacher shall discuss the matter with the student, and warn the student that the continued misbehavior will result in the loss of certain privileges.
- B. The teacher may then proceed, as appropriate, with any of the following corrective actions:
 - Separate the student within the classroom.
 - Contact parent/guardian by telephone, note or email.
 - Have the student present when calling a parent/guardian at home or work to explain misbehavior.
 - Have the student write a letter to a parent/guardian explaining his/her misbehavior; require the parent/guardian to sign the letter.
 - Develop a student behavioral contract.

- Assign an after-school detention (when transportation is available).
- Ask the school administration to assign a one-day in-school suspension.
- Withhold privileges (no student may be denied the right to have lunch or snack).
- Initiate a pre-arranged alternative classroom setting for up to a class period.
- Consult with the principal, guidance counselor, case managers, or other appropriate staff concerning future strategies.
- Any other acceptable action as adopted by the school staff.
- In situations where academic dishonesty is the issue, students may not be given credit for the work presented.
- C. If the student does not respond to the above attempts, the student shall be removed from the classroom for at least the remainder of the class period and/or up to the remainder of the school day, and the parent/guardian will be contacted in a timely manner.
- D. When a student is sent to the principal's office a discipline referral will be submitted to the principal by the teacher as soon as is practical, and incorporated into the student's disciplinary record. When necessary, teachers will be responsible for providing summary information of corrective actions attempted prior to referring the student to the office.
- E. At the elementary level, after any three violations there will be a teacher-initiated parent/guardian communication. At the secondary level, after a student is referred to a school administrator three times during a quarter, the school administrator will communicate with the parent/guardian. This communication may be initiated by the administrator or by the teacher/team.
- F. Student demerits may be used where applicable.
- G. Repeated Class III Offenses as reviewed by appropriate staff may be treated as Class II Offenses.

Class II Offenses (Moderate)

By their nature, these acts are considered as significant violations of the student behavior standards. Class II Offenses require that a building administrator be involved in the disciplinary action. A response to a Class II offense will generally proceed as follows:

- A. The student shall be immediately removed for the rest of the class period or for the school day if the student's presence is detrimental to the classroom or poses any danger to others.
- B. The school administrator shall make every reasonable effort to contact the parent as soon as possible after the disciplinary action. A conference will be scheduled as needed.

- C. According to the severity of the offense(s) there will be an in-school suspension of up to three (3) days, an out-of-school suspension of up to three (3) days, or an extended day detention of up to three (3) days.
- D. Depending on the severity and the nature of the offense, law enforcement authorities may be contacted and the student may be subject to prosecution.
- E. Restitution for damages to school or personal property may be required.
- F. According to the severity of the offense(s), the student may be required to engage in an educational activity.
- G. Singularly severe incidents and/or repeated Class II Offenses may be treated as Class I Offenses.

CLASS I OFFENSES (Severe)

Violence, weapons, and crime will not be tolerated on Nashua School District property or at any Nashua School District sponsored event. These acts are the most severe violations of the behavior code. Offenses at this level usually go beyond the school discipline system and almost always draw upon law enforcement authorities. All students involved in Class I Offenses will be removed from school immediately.

Discipline Responses for any Class I Offense in any Nashua School District building, "School Safety Zone,"* or at any school function shall be as follows:

- A. The parent/guardian shall be contacted by the principal or assistant principal.
- $B. \ \$ The student shall receive up to a ten-day (10) out-of-school suspension from the principal.
- C. The principal may request an additional ten-day (10) out-of-school suspension from the superintendent or designee or request an expulsion by the Superintendent to the Board of Education.

 Law enforcement authorities may be contacted depending upon the nature and the severity of infraction.
- D. The student may be subject to prosecution and restitution.
- E. The parents/guardians shall be informed throughout the process.

 Additionally, other forms of long-term and permanent reassignment shall be explored as required by the situation.

LISTING OF OFFENSES AND RESPONSES

The chart below outlines student offenses and the general disciplinary responses to those offenses.

Student Offenses	Elementary Response	Middle School Response	High School Response
Academic dishonesty, cheating	Class III	Class III	Class III
An inappropriate behavior or improper act	Class III	Class III	Class III
Truant from class	Class III	Class III	Class III
Deliberately disrupting or distracting others	Class III	Class III	Class III
Continuous refusal to bring required materials to class	Class III	Class III	Class III
Inappropriate use of any electronic device, including a cell phone. The item may be confiscated and will require a parent/guardian to pick it up.	Class III	Class III	Class III
Deceiving or lying to a staff member	Class III	Class III	Class III
Leaving class without the teacher's permission	Class III	Class III	Class III
Failure to follow any staff member's reasonable request to carry out school rules	Class III	Class III	Class III
Any inappropriate display of affection	Class III	Class III	Class III
Pushing/shoving or running in hallways	Class III	Class III	Class III
Littering	Class III	Class III	Class III
Possession of tobacco products and/or vaping products either in school or on school grounds or other campus areas which are under the jurisdiction of the Nashua School District. Tobacco and/or vaping products will be confiscated.	Class II	Class II	Class II

Any other violations which the Principal considers reasonable to fall within a class III category	Class III	Class III	Class III
Stealing	Class III	Class II	Class II
Destroying, pirating (copyright infringement), altering or any other misuse of computer software and/or hardware belonging to students, the school department, or any school employee/volunteer	Class III	Class II	Class I
Repeatedly tardy to school or class	Class III	Class II	Class II
Truancy/skipping school	Class III	Class II	Class II
Use of profanity and/or obscene language or gestures	Class III	Class II	Class II
Disrespectful behavior towards others	Class III	Class II	Class II
Possession of any demeaning publication or material including, but not limited to, the following areas: race, color, ethnic origin, religion, sex, sexual orientation and disability status	Class III	Class II	Class II
Forgery	Class III	Class II	Class II
Conduct which is emotionally injurious to others; see also response to bullying	Class II	Class II	Class II
Reckless behavior/endangering others	Class II	Class II	Class II
Harassment of an ethnic, racial, sexual or religious nature, including but not limited to: conduct or comments that threaten physical violence; offensive, unsolicited remarks; unwelcome gestures or physical contact, including unsolicited propositions to engage in sexual acts; and verbal abuse or insults about, or directed at, any faculty, staff, and/or student	Class II	Class I	Class I

Defacing or vandalizing school property or the personal property of others	Class II	Class II	Class II
Leaving school grounds without permission; being in an "off limits area"; or being on school grounds at a time when it is clearly prohibited	Class II	Class II	Class II
Persistent disruptive behavior which repeatedly interrupts the educational environment	Class II	Class II	Class II
Bullying	See Policy JICK	See Policy JICK	See Policy JICK
Gambling	Class II	Class II	Class II
The threat or perceived threat by word or act to do violence to another where it is reasonably certain that the person has the intention and means to carry out the threat	Class II	Class II	Class II
Instigating, engaging in or attempting to fight another student. The investigating professional may take into consideration the actions of the student who was attacked if he/she had no reasonable alternative but to physically defend him/herself.	Class II	Class II	Class II
Sharing, distributing or having for sale any demeaning publication including, but not limited to, the following areas: race, color, ethnic origin, religion, sex, sexual orientation and disability status	Class II	Class II	Class II
Repeated Class III Offenses	Class II	Class II	Class II
Any other violation which the school Principal considers reasonable to fall within a class II category due to its severity.	Class II	Class II	Class II
Possession of a toy gun	Class II	Class I	Class I

Extorting or maliciously threatening another student in order to gain money or objects belonging to that student	Class II	Class II	Class I
Bringing or possessing a firearm, as defined in Section 921 of Title XVIII of the U.S. Code, on school grounds or within the "Safe School Zone" (as defined in RSA 193-D:1) without written authorization from the Superintendent	Class I As required by law	Class I As required by law	Class I As required by law
Possession of a pellet gun, BB gun, BB rifle, or paint gun on school grounds or within the "Safe School Zone" (as defined in RSA 193-D:1)	Class I	Class I	Class I
Distribution, exchange, or selling of drugs or possession of drugs with the intent to distribute, exchange or sell	Class I	Class I	Class I
Starting or attempting to start a fire on school property	Class I	Class I	Class I
Using or threatening to use any dangerous object, weapon, destructive devices, or any instrument which might be capable of inflicting bodily injury; and/or assaulting, attacking or threatening to cause physical injury with or without any dangerous object to any adult or student	Class I	Class I	Class I
Possession of alcohol, illegal drugs or drug paraphernalia or being under the influence of alcohol, illegal drugs or any substance purported to be an illegal drug	Class I	Class I	Class I
Causing a false fire alarm or a bomb scare	Class I	Class I	Class I
Any act of sexual violence	Class I	Class I	Class I

Possession of any dangerous object, weapon, fireworks, destructive devices or any other instrument which may be capable of inflicting bodily injury	Class I	Class I	Class I
Unlawful entry	Class I	Class I	Class I
Inciting others to violence and/or encouraging other students to join in a disturbance	Class I	Class I	Class I
Repeated Class III or II Offenses	Class I	Class I	Class I
Any other violations which the school principal considers reasonable to fall within this category due to its severity.	Class I	Class I	Class I

Conditions for Academic Make-up Following a Suspension

Linking academic grades to behavioral discipline is not an effective method of modifying the behaviors of suspended students. For this reason, students receiving in-school or out-of-school suspensions will be able to complete schoolwork while serving their suspensions.

For work not completed during an out-of-school suspension, it is the student's responsibility to meet with his/her teacher during the subject teacher's after school make-up time. Failure to make and to keep this appointment with the teacher may jeopardize the make-up option. The purpose of this meeting will be to determine the extent of the schoolwork and to establish a timeline for its completion. Students will be granted a minimum of one day's time per each day of suspension to make up their schoolwork, not to exceed a maximum of ten school days from the date the assignment was provided by the teacher.

School Activities

During the time that a high school student is suspended he/she loses the privilege of participating in all school sponsored athletic, extra-curricular and co-curricular activities for that period. Students may also lose privileges during days in which the student is serving an extended day detention.

During the time that a middle school student is suspended he/she loses the privilege of participating in all school sponsored athletic, extra-curricular and co-curricular activities for that period. Students may also lose the privilege of participating in school sponsored athletic, extra-curricular and co-curricular activities, as well as field trips if they are placed on academic probation through school accountability programs.

Procedures for Student Disciplinary Action

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that all students subject to disciplinary procedures have been afforded due process, and that all disciplinary actions conform to RSA 193:13, the IDEA, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, New Hampshire Rules for the Education of Children with Disabilities, policies of the Nashua Board of Education, and the Safe School Zone Act. Whenever a student is suspended or expelled, he or she may receive a copy of his/her rights.

A school administrator may suspend a student for up to ten (10) days for disciplinary reasons. The Principal may request the Superintendent or designee to suspend the student up to an additional ten (10) days. The Superintendent may request the expulsion of a student for disciplinary reasons.

Short-term Suspension (a suspension of up to ten (10) days)

A school administrator shall meet with the student to discuss the student's conduct and shall:

- At the outset of the meeting, inform the student of the nature of the violation:
- inform the student of the nature of the evidence and facts upon which the administrator is making his/her decision;
- receive information and evidence from the student on his/her behalf; including presentation of any mitigating factors; and,

The school administrator shall make every reasonable effort to contact the parent as soon as possible after the disciplinary action. The Principal or designee shall immediately provide the student and parent/guardian a letter explaining the disciplinary action. The letter shall set forth:

- an explanation of the charge(s) against the student, and a brief summary of the evidence;
- b. the disciplinary action taken by the school administrator;
- c. the period of time covered by the disciplinary action;
- d. notice of the school administrator's intention to request further disciplinary action either by the
 - Superintendent of Schools or designee, or the Nashua Board of Education; and,
- e. notice that the parent/guardian may request to meet with the school administrator to review the discipline.

The Principal or designee shall hand deliver this letter in a meeting with the parent/guardian and/or student, email the letter to the parent/guardian and student, or send it to the parent/guardian and student by U.S. mail to the last known address.

Special education students may be subject to short-term suspensions consistent with the procedures afforded non-disabled students under this section. When any suspension of a special education student results in an accumulative suspension during a school year in excess of ten (10) days, then the procedures for long-term suspension of a special education student are applicable.

Long-term Suspension (a suspension of eleven (11) to twenty (20) days)

The Superintendent or designee, upon receiving a request from a Principal for a long-term suspension shall schedule a hearing. If practical, this hearing shall be scheduled prior to the end of the initial ten-day suspension imposed by the Principal. If the hearing is not held prior to the expiration of the initial ten-day suspension, the student shall be allowed to return to school until the hearing is held.

Prior notice of a hearing before the Superintendent or designee shall be provided to the student and the student's parent/guardian. The written notice shall include:

- a. an explanation of the charge(s) against the student and a brief summary of the evidence;
- b. the date, time, and location of the hearing;
- c. notice of the right to be represented by a parent or guardian or by legal counsel (at their expense) and to present evidence and call and examine witnesses;
- d. notice that should the student/parent/guardian fail to appear at the hearing, that the finder of fact will rely on the information/evidence presented by the school's witnesses;
- e. notice of the right of the parent or eligible student (18 years of age) to waive the right to a hearing and admit to the charge(s).

Prior written notice of the hearing before the Superintendent or designee shall be delivered in person or sent by the Superintendent or designee to the student and the student's parent/guardian by regular U.S. mail to the student's last known address.

A hearing on the request for a long-term suspension shall be conducted in accordance with the hearing procedures afforded a student during an expulsion hearing (see *Expulsion* section).

Following the hearing, the finder of fact shall promptly provide a written decision to the student and the student's parent/guardian. The notice of the decision shall include:

- a. a summary of the evidence presented;
- the facts and evidence relied upon in making the decision and the legal basis for the decision;

- c. if the request for the long-term suspension is granted, the period of time covered by the disciplinary action;
- d. notice of the right to appeal, in writing, this decision to the Nashua Board of Education within ten (10) days of the issuance of the written decision; and
- e. notice that the long-term suspension will begin even if appealed unless the parent requests that the Nashua Board of Education stays the suspension and the request is granted.

The Superintendent's or designee's written notice of decision to the student and the student's parent/guardian shall be delivered in person or by U.S. mail (certified with return receipt) to the student's last known address.

If the parent/guardian appeals the decision of the Superintendent or designee, a formal hearing before the Board of Education will be scheduled as soon as practical.

The appeal hearing may be postponed at the request of the parent/guardian for good cause or if the parent/guardian needs additional time to prepare for the formal hearing.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide the student's parent/guardian prior written notice of the appeal hearing. This notice shall include:

- a. date, time, and location of the hearing; and
- b. the right to be represented by legal counsel (at their expense) and to present evidence and to call and examine witnesses

The Superintendent or designee shall send written notice of the appeal hearing to the student and the student's parent/guardian by U.S. mail (certified with return receipt) to the last known address.

The appeal hearing shall be conducted in accordance with the same hearing procedures afforded a student during an expulsion hearing.

If a regular education student receives a long-term suspension or a pattern of short-term suspensions for more than ten (10) days, the principal may convene a child assistance team from the student's school to review the student's cumulative file and the disciplinary action before the beginning of the tenth day of suspension in order to consider additional education services in accordance with applicable state and federal law. The team will notify the Principal of its findings.

If a special education student receives a long-term suspension or a pattern of short-term suspensions for substantially the same behaviors that exceeds ten (10) days in a school year, the administrator shall contact the special education case manager to convene an I.E.P. (Individual Education Plan) team meeting prior to the commencement of the eleventh day of suspension. A functional behavioral assessment and behavior intervention plan will be completed or updated. The team

will determine if the behavior is or is not a manifestation of the student's educational disability. Disciplinary action will occur in accordance with all federal and state laws, regulations, and rules for the education of children with disabilities.

If a special education student is recommended for a long-term suspension, the student and the student's parent(s)/guardian(s) shall receive the same written notice as non-disabled students. This written notice shall also advise the student and the student's parent(s)/guardian(s) of their rights under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), including notice that a long-term suspension is a change of placement which they may disagree with and, if applicable, invoke the "stay-put" provisions of the IDEA. The student's I.E.P. Team and other qualified personnel shall meet prior to the imposition of a long-term suspension to determine whether the conduct causing the disciplinary action was a manifestation of the student's educational disability. If the I.E.P. Team determines that the student's conduct was not a manifestation of the student's educational disability, the disciplinary action shall proceed. The student's I.E.P. services shall be delivered during the period of suspension. If the I.E.P. Team determines that the student's conduct was a manifestation of the student's educational disability, the long-term suspension shall not be imposed.

The student's I.E.P. Team shall also conduct a functional behavioral assessment and develop and implement a behavioral intervention plan within ten (10) business days of the eleventh (11th) day of suspension or after causing a removal constituting a change of placement. If a behavioral intervention plan already exists, the I.E.P. Team must review and, if appropriate, modify that existing plan."

Expulsion

If the Principal or the Superintendent or designee requests that a student be expelled from school, the Superintendent shall determine prior to the end of the student's initial ten-day suspension whether to submit the request to the Nashua Board of Education. A formal hearing shall be held prior to any expulsion. Except in situations involving a student bringing or possessing a firearm in a safe school zone, an expulsion hearing may be held either before or after the expiration of the initial ten-day suspension. If the hearing is scheduled to be held after the expiration of the initial ten-day suspension, the student shall be allowed to return to school until the hearing is held. In situations involving a student bringing or possessing a firearm in a safe school zone, the Nashua Board of Education shall hold the expulsion hearing within ten days of the commencement of the student's ten-day suspension.

Upon receipt of a request for expulsion, the Nashua Board of Education or designee shall provide prior written notice to the student and the student's parent/guardian, which shall include:

- a. the date, time and location of the hearing;
- a statement of the charges against the student and a summary of the evidence supporting the charges;

- the Superintendent's written recommendation for Board of Education action and a description of the process used by the Superintendent to reach his/her decision;
- d. notice that the student together with a parent may waive the right to a hearing and admit to the charges; parental consent is not necessary if the student is 18 years or older unless the student is subject to a guardianship
- e. notice that the student has a right to be represented by counsel at his/her expense;
- f. notice that the student, parent/guardian or counsel has the right to present any defense or reply to, call and/or examine any and all witnesses; and,
- g. notice that the hearing may be either public or private and the choice shall be that of the student or the student's parent/guardian.

The written notice shall be delivered to the student and the student's parent/guardian, in person or by mail to the student's last known address, at least five days prior to the hearing.

The decision of the Nashua Board of Education to expel a student shall be based on substantial evidence that the student committed the act(s) charged and that the act(s) is, in fact, a proper ground(s) for expulsion.

The decision, which shall be reduced to writing, shall state whether the student is expelled; the legal and factual basis for the decision if the student is expelled; the length of the expulsion; any action the student may take to be restored by the Nashua Board of Education; and, notice that the student has the right to appeal the decision to the State Board of Education within twenty (20) days of receipt of the written decision.

The Superintendent of Schools may request the Board of Education to modify the mandatory 12-month expulsion from school for bringing to or possessing a firearm in a safe school zone on a case-by-case basis.

The requirement of an expulsion hearing for other Class I offenses may be modified on a case-by-case basis by the Superintendent for circumstances including, but not limited to, the student's age. If the Superintendent in his/her discretion determines that the circumstances are such that the sanctions are inappropriately severe, he/she may impose or request the Board of Education to impose such lesser sanction(s) as he/she determines is appropriate. In all such cases, the Superintendent shall make a written report to the Board of Education detailing his/her reasons for taking or requesting such action.

Prior to the start of each semester, an expelled student may petition the Nashua Board of Education to review its decision to expel, so long as the expulsion occurred at least sixty (60) days prior to that request.

The petition shall:

- a. be submitted in writing to the Nashua Board of Education no later than three
 (3) weeks prior to the start of the semester;
- set forth the reasons for the request for readmission and any information and facts which the student believes supports the petition; and,
- C. indicate whether the student requests a hearing on the matter.

The Nashua Board of Education shall consider the petition within two (2) weeks of its receipt and provide the student written notice of its decision immediately thereafter. If a hearing is requested, the Nashua Board of Education shall schedule a hearing within three (3) weeks of receipt of the petition for review. The student may be present at said hearing along with his/her parent/guardian or other adult advocate. The student may present facts and evidence in support of his/her petition for readmission. The Nashua Board of Education shall render a decision within one (1) week of the hearing and provide the student with written notice of its decision.

Expulsion of Special Education Students

If a special education student is recommended for expulsion, the student and the student's parent(s)/guardian(s) shall be provided with the same written notice as non-disabled students. This written notice shall also advise the student and the student's parent(s)/guardian(s) of their rights under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), including the right to disagree with any change of placement and to appeal decisions of the student's I.E.P. Team and the Nashua Board of Education.

In cases involving possession of or sale of drugs or the possession of a weapon, the student's I.E.P. Team shall be convened no later than ten (10) business days after the event giving rise to the request for expulsion for the purpose of conducting a manifestation determination review, a functional behavioral assessment and to make a determination of an appropriate forty-five (45) day interim alternative educational placement. If the I.E.P. Team determines that the student's conduct was not a manifestation of the student's educational disability, the Team's report shall be forwarded to the Superintendent for further disciplinary action. Should the special education student be expelled following a hearing before the Board of Education or its subcommittee, the I.E.P. Team must then propose and offer an alternative longterm placement where the student will receive a free, appropriate, public education and the student's I.E.P. services can be delivered. The recommendation for the long-term placement must be made prior to the expiration of the forty-five (45) interim alternative educational placement. If the I.E.P. Team determines that the conduct giving rise to the request for expulsion was a manifestation of the student's educational disability, then no discipline in excess of the initial ten-day suspension shall be imposed.

When a student's conduct does not involve a drug or weapon violation, but the school determines that the student presents a potential danger to himself/herself or to others in his/her current placement, the school may request a forty-five (45) day interim alternative educational placement. No change of placement shall occur without the consent of the parent/guardian after the convening of the I.E.P. Team or, until the school obtains an order from a Hearings Officer granting permission for such a placement.

Legal References:

RSA 189:15, Regulations

 $NH\ Code\ of\ Administrative\ Rules,\ Section\ Ed\ 306.04(a)(3),\ Student$

Discipline

NH Code of Administrative Rules, Section Ed 306.04(f), Student

Discipline

 $NH\ Code\ of\ Administrative\ Rules,\ Section\ Ed\ 317.04(a,b),\ Disciplinary$

Procedures

Board Approved: 10/15/96 R/Bd Approved: 03/31/03 R/Bd Approved: R/Bd Approved: 04/21/03 07/21/97 R/Bd Approved: R/Bd Approved: 07/21/03 03/29/99 R/Bd Approved: 08/16/99 R/Bd Approved: 06/28/04 R/Bd Approved: R/Bd Approved: 08/31/06 08/19/02 R/Bd Approved: 10/15/02 R/Bd Approved: 03/09/15

R/Bd Approved: 02/27/17

DISTRICT POLICIES

IMPORTANT NASHUA SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICIES

Included in this section are excerpts from policies that are important to and/or frequently requested by our parents/students. The entire set of Board of Education-approved policies can be found at https://www.nashua.edu/Page/777

Brief Statement of Non-Discrimination

The following brief statement shall be used on permanent flyers and posters, District and school websites, small pamphlets and employment applications:

The Nashua Board of Education reaffirms its position of compliance with applicable State and Federal laws of nondiscrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, sexual orientation, physical or mental disability, marital status, familial status, genetic information and age in admission to, access to, treatment in, or employment in the services, programs, and activities of the Nashua School District. See Policy AC

Sexual Discrimination, Sexual Harassment, And Sexual Violence - Students

The Nashua Board of Education is committed to providing an educational environment for students that is free from sexual discrimination, sexual harassment and sexual violence. Sexual harassment is a form of sexual discrimination which violates Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, and N.H. State Statute 354-A:7, Unlawful Discriminatory Practices. Sexual violence is a physical act of aggression, attempted or completed, that includes a sexual act or sexual purpose. Sexual violence includes non-physical contact of a sexual nature such as threats of sexual violence or intentional or unwanted exposure of an individual to exhibitionism, pornography and acts of voyeurism... See Policy AC

Bullying

The Nashua School District is committed to providing all pupils with a safe, secure and peaceful school environment. Conduct constituting bullying or cyberbullying will not be tolerated and is expressly prohibited... See Policy JICK

Procedural Safeguards Nondiscrimination On The Basis Of Handicap/Disability

The Nashua School District provides the following procedures for conducting impartial due process hearings under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and Title II of the American with Disabilities Act of 1990. See **Policy ACAC**.

Prohibitions Regarding Use of Possession of Tobacco Products, E-Cigarettes, and E-Liquids in and on School Facilities and Grounds

No person shall use any tobacco product in any facility maintained by the School District, nor on any of the grounds of the District...See <u>Policy ADC</u>.